

# Code of Practice

Care and Supervision of Young People



## Contents

1.	Introduction	3
Purpose of the Code of Practice		3
The 1	11 Child Safe Standards	3
Key Definitions		
AGA commitment to care and supervision		5
2.	AGA Policy	5
3.	Legal requirements and professional conduct	5
4.	Specific needs of young people	6
5.	Child Safe Standards	6
6.	Practices for care and supervision	7
Police and Working with Children Check		7
Char	rges and offences	7
Conflict of interest		7
Profe	essional and personal relationships	8
Preferred parent or guardian contact		8
Preferred emergency contact		9
Priva	acy and confidentiality	9
Agreements and conditions entered into		10
Interviews		11
Meet	tings	11
Providing transport		11
Supe	ervision of students	12
Poor	performance, counselling and disciplinary procedures	13
Takin	ng of photographs and videos	13
Socia	al media	14
Receiving and giving gifts		14
Healt	lth and safety	14



Illness and medical issues – AGA Employed Apprentices & Trainees	15
Incident and injury notification	15
Workplace harassment and bullying	
Discrimination	16
Reporting suspected child abuse	
7. Non-compliance with the Code of Practice	. 17
8. Management review of the Code of Practice	. 17
Appendix 1 – Care and Supervision of Young People Policy	
Appendix 2 – Child Safe Statement of Commitment	
Child Safe Statement of Commitment	21



## 1. Introduction

## Purpose of the Code of Practice

The Code of Practice supports the implementation of the AGA policy on the care and supervision of young people that we employ, train and supervise.

The Code of Practice documents the standards and practices for the care and supervision of children and other young people that are our legal and moral responsibility.

The Victorian Child Safe Standards introduced on 1 January 2016 requires the implementation of this Code of Practice and Child Safe Statement of Commitment. The Statement is included within this document.

All staff (full-time, part-time and casual) and those contracted to provide services for AGA are required to comply with the requirements and obligations in the Code of Practice.

Apprentices and Trainees employed by AGA through the Group Training Organisation not considered staff contracted to provide services for AGA for the purposes of this Code of Practice and are considered the children and young people that are our legal and moral responsibility.

## The 11 Child Safe Standards

#### Standard 1

Organisations establish a culturally safe environment in which the diverse and unique identities and experiences of Aboriginal children and young people are respected and valued.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 1

## Standard 2

Child safety and wellbeing is embedded in organisational leadership, governance and culture.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 2

## Standard 3

Children and young people are empowered about their rights, participate in decisions affecting them and are taken seriously.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 3

## Standard 4

Families and communities are informed and involved in promoting child safety and wellbeing.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 4

#### Standard 5

Equity is upheld and diverse needs respected in policy and practice.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 5



#### Standard 6

People working with children and young people are suitable and supported to reflect child safety and wellbeing values in practice.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 6

#### Standard 7

Processes for complaints and concerns are child-focused.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 7

#### Standard 8

Staff and volunteers are equipped with the knowledge, skills and awareness to keep children and young people safe through ongoing education and training.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 8

#### Standard 9

Physical and online environments promote safety and wellbeing while minimising the opportunity for children and young people to be harmed.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 9

#### Standard 10

Implementation of the Child Safe Standards is regularly reviewed and improved.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 10

#### Standard 11

Policies and procedures document how the organisation is safe for children and young people.

Click here for details about Child Safe Standard 11

## **Key Definitions**

## Care

Care is defined as providing consideration, attention and actions to do something correctly and to avoid damage or harm.

## Child

A child is defined as a person under the age of 18.

## **Child Safe Standards**

Compulsory standards for all organisations providing services to children introduced by the Victorian Government for the prevention and response to child abuse that may occur at the organisation.

## Parent or guardian

A person who has parenting responsibility for a child or other young person, including legal guardian and extended family members such as grandparents.



#### Supervision

Supervision is defined as the act or process of observing, managing or directing a person or group of people or how something is done.

#### Young person

A young person is defined as being over the age of 18 and under 21.

#### **AGA Staff member**

An AGA staff member is defined as any person employed or engaged full-time, part-time, and casual, on contract and any IntoWork staff member performing duties on behalf of AGA.

## AGA commitment to care and supervision

The objective of the AGA policy on the care and supervision of young people is providing appropriate and effective care and supervision. It is acknowledged that AGA have a responsibility for the care and supervision of all people that they employ, train or supervise. It is recognised, however, that children and other young people have specific needs in addition to this general duty of care.

# 2.AGA Policy

AGA is committed to continuous improvement in the employment, training and supervision practices for children and other young people. In addition to this general duty of care, AGA are committed to the protection of children and implementation of the Victorian Child Safe Standards.

It is the policy of AGA that:

- A Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People is maintained for providing guidance to management and staff on appropriate behavior with children and other young people
- The Code of Practice contains a Child Safe Statement providing a commitment to child safety and the prevention of child abuse
- The Code of Practice and other pertinent information is communicated to relevant staff, contract trainers and other interested parties
- The policy and the Child Safe Statement are maintained on the organisation's web site
- Competencies are developed and maintained for employees with roles and responsibilities for the effective implementation of the Code of Practice
- Relevant documents, records and data are created and maintained for the effective implementation and compliance with the Code of Practice
- Senior management implement a periodic review of the management systems for providing care and supervision to young people so that they remain effective and appropriate.
- A complete copy of the AGA Policy is located within this document. <u>Appendix 1</u>

# 3. Legal requirements and professional conduct

In the training and employment context, Duty of Care is a common law concept that refers to the responsibility of an organisation and its staff to provide employees and trainees with an adequate level of protection against harm.



It is usually expressed as a duty to take reasonable care to provide protection from all reasonably foreseeable risk.

Conduct representing a breach of legal obligations by AGA or staff may include:

- Employment law
- · Equal opportunity
- · Health and safety
- Privacy
- Sexual discrimination

The Code of Practice provides details of the professional conduct and relationship of staff and contractors with young people during their employment or training and when providing supervision.

# 4. Specific needs of young people

AGA have a responsibility for the care and supervision of all people that they employ, train or supervise. It is recognised, however, that children and other young people have specific needs in addition to this general duty of care.

Those under 18 are likely to be under parental care or have a legal guardian. A parent or guardian may need to be consulted or advised of arrangements and circumstances involving the child. In some instances, their consent or agreement may need to be obtained.

Young people may lack the skills, knowledge or self-awareness of how to interact with others in the workplace. They may not be familiar with common policies or standards of behaviour and it is important that they are supported and provided guidance on what is required. They will not know things that more mature and experienced people take for granted.

For many young people, the path from education to employment and vocational training is full of change and uncertainty and part of the challenges that more mature people have experienced. For some the situation is compounded by other factors in their life that they are dealing with such as relationships, health matters and other personal issues.

A young person's perception of risk is often not as well developed as more experienced and more mature people. This is a particular important consideration when dealing with health and safety matters such as safe work practices, bullying and harassment and inappropriate or risk taking behaviour.

## 5. Child Safe Standards

The Victorian Government introduced Child Safe Standards to improve the way organisations provide services for children prevent and respond to child abuse that may occur within their organisation.

The standards are compulsory for all organisations providing services to children. This includes organisations that provide services to both adults and children such as AGA.

The aim of the standards is to:



- · prevent child abuse
- · encourage reporting of any abuse that does occur
- improve responses to any allegations of child abuse.

The standards require a statement of commitment to child safety and a code of conduct that establishes clear expectations for appropriate behavior with children. This Code of Practice and the Child Safe Statement have been developed to meet these obligations.

# 6. Practices for care and supervision

The following information provides the requirements for appropriate professional practice for staff and contractors for the care and supervision of young people.

The areas below are not an exhaustive list but provides the AGA requirements for common situations.

## Police and Working with Children Check

A working with children check is a legal requirement for people having direct supervision of children at work in certain vocations. The check provided continual monitoring over 5 years for legal breaches relevant to their supervision role.

All AGA staff members must have an up-to-date police check and Working With Children Check.

Any AGA staff member who does not hold a current police check or working with children check, cannot have face-to-face contact with a child or young person. In the instance where a non-accredited staff member must meet with a child or young person, an AGA staff member with the relevant accreditation must be present.

## Charges and offences

A staff member or contractor is required to advise AGA in writing of any criminal charge laid against them where they have reasonable grounds for believing that the interests of AGA or their operations may be adversely affected. Taking into account:

- The circumstances and seriousness of the alleged offence
- The duties of the staff member or contractor

The matter can be raised with either the:

• Relevant Senior Manager Chief Executive Officer

## Conflict of interest

A conflict of interest may exist when an AGA staff member or contractor's private interests or personal circumstances interfere or are likely to interfere with the proper performance of their duties.

Some examples include:

- Preferential treatment to friends, relatives or organisations in which the employee has any interest.
- External, private work which would be in direct competition with AGA or that may adversely affect the employees work performance or gives rise to a conflict or potential conflict of interest.
- Solicit or accept any unauthorised gifts, rewards or benefits, which might compromise, or might be seen to compromise, the integrity of the employee or of AGA.



A potential or actual conflict of interest must be declared to avoid or resolve the matter to either the:

- · Relevant Senior Manager
- Chief Executive Officer

## Professional and personal relationships

AGA staff and contractors have a responsibility for establishing and maintaining a professional relationship with all people that they train and supervise. This responsibility is even more significant for children and other young people.

Trainers, employers and supervisors have a position of authority in the management of other people and as such are required to exercise their rights and powers in good faith and integrity and not for personal gain or improper advantage.

Trainers, employers and supervisors also have a responsibility for managing the personal behaviour of young people as a part of maintaining a professional relationship.

AGA staff and contractors must:

- Act as a positive role model for people they train, employ and supervise, e.g. personal interaction, safe
  work practices, and the principles of equal opportunity in employment and training
- Discourage and not participate in an inappropriate conversation or contact of a sexual nature
- Maintain a professional interaction with other people and discourage anti-social behaviour, teasing, joking, horseplay or other inappropriate behaviour
- Have a standard of dress and appearance appropriate to their duties and the people with whom they are dealing

AGA staff and contractors who provide training and supervision to children and young people must NOT:

- Provide them with their personal contact details such as phone, email and home address
- · Provide access to their social media account details or communicate with them using social media
- Discuss or correspond with them on an intimate personal nature or provide personal lifestyle details.

Any concerns regarding whether a situation may compromise or breach a professional relationship must be discussed with either the:

- Relevant Senior Manager, or
- Chief Executive Officer

Failure of staff and contractors to maintain a professional relationship and avoid an inappropriate personal relationship represents a breach of trust; a failure to meet a duty of care to children and young people; and a failure to follow conduct requirements of AGA.

## Preferred parent or guardian contact

Maintaining records of the preferred parent or guardian contact person is an important part of managing the employment and training arrangements of children. They may nominate one or more preferred parent or guardian contact.

Some children may be subject to an agreement on custody and parenting arrangements or parenting orders implemented by a court. These arrangements may include restrictions that could affect communication between AGA and the child's parent or guardian.

Typical contact situations that involve a child may include:



- Obtaining consent for agreements and conditions
- · Discussing any special needs and assistance required
- Providing feedback or discussing issues regarding performance
- · Implementing disciplinary procedures
- · Suspension and cancellations
- · Performance management
- · Privacy breach

Only the preferred parent or guardian contact person is to be contacted regarding any matter in relation to a child (either person in the case of multiple preferred contact parent or guardian).

Up-to-date contact details for all children involved in employment, training or being supervised by AGA staff and contractors must be maintained. The details are to be readily retrievable and protected against loss or unauthorised access and modification and Intowork Privacy Policy and relevant legislation must be followed at all times

## Preferred emergency contact

Maintaining records of the preferred emergency contact person is an important part of AGA emergency procedures. Typically, emergencies may include:

- Medical conditions
- · Injuries and incidents
- Natural disasters

The preferred emergency contact person must be the same as the preferred parent or guardian contact person in the case of a child.

Up-to-date contact details for all people involved in employment, training or being supervised by AGA staff and contractors must be maintained. The details are to be readily retrievable and protected against loss or unauthorised access and modification.

## Privacy and confidentiality

AGA and its staff and contractors are bound by the Commonwealth Privacy Act 1988 and the Australian Privacy Principles that regulate the use and disclosure of personal information.

Personal information is any information or an opinion about an individual whose identity is apparent or can reasonably be ascertained from the information or opinion.

The Privacy Principles govern the collection, processing, storage, use, disclosure and destruction of personal information. AGA personal information and data systems are designed to comply with the Principles. The AGA Privacy Policy must be followed at all times.

AGA staff and contractors must:

- Only collect personal information for lawful purposes directly related to an AGA function or activity
- Only collect information that is relevant and required for the AGA function or activity
- Take reasonable steps to ensure the individual is aware of the purpose for which the information is collected



- Take reasonable steps to ensure personal information is protected against unauthorised access, use, amendment or disclosure
- Take reasonable steps to ensure that the personal information is accurate and kept up to date In regards to a child and disclosure or discussion about personal information with the preferred parent or guardian the child must be:
  - o Advised of the nature of the information to be disclosed or discussed, and
  - o Provided the reason for such action before disclosing or discussing the personal information

AGA staff and contractors are only permitted to disclose or discuss personal information with the preferred parent or guardian contact person.

It is acknowledged that some young people may have a relationship with a parent, guardian or other party that have an active interest or provide support for their employment, training or supervision provided by AGA.

In regards to a young person and disclosure or discussion about personal information with another person, staff or contractors must:

- Obtain the permission of the person prior to disclosing or discussing the personal information
- Advise the person of the nature of the information to be disclosed or discussed
- Provide the reason for such action before disclosing or discussing the personal information
- Take reasonable steps to ensure the identity of the person or party to whom the information is disclosed or discussed, and
- Provide the opportunity and arrange for the person to be present when disclosing or discussing the personal information, if reasonably practicable

AGA staff and contractors are only permitted to disclose or discuss a young person's personal information with another person or party with the consent of the person concerned.

## Agreements and conditions entered into

AGA enters into agreements and conditions regarding employment and training with people that access their services.

Typically, these can include:

- · Employment contracts
- Training agreements
- Code of conduct
- Volunteer
- Work trials

Disciplinary outcome and performance requirements AGA staff and contractors must ensure:

- That reasonable steps are taken to provide an explanation of the agreement or conditions being entered into in a manner that they understand
- In regards to a child, the agreement or conditions must be entered into by the preferred parent or guardian in addition to the child
- · That the agreement or conditions are complete in full (signed, dated and witnessed if required), and
- That a copy of any agreement of conditions entered into is maintained as long as it is applicable



## Interviews

AGA must ensure that the rights and interests are maintained during interviews with young people and that they are conducted in a safe and appropriate manner. Precautions aimed at preventing any misunderstanding or possible allegations of misconduct by an AGA staff member are also important considerations.

Where the interview is to be conducted at a location where some other person has responsibility for the protection of the young person (e.g. school), permission of the relevant person must be obtained before conducting any interview.

The preferred parent or guardian of a child must be invited to any interview that they participate in with an AGA staff member. Where the parent or guardian declines or does not attend, the interviewer must have an additional person present for the interview.

If there is an interview with a child candidate of the opposite gender to the interviewer (and the preferred parent or guardian is not present), the second interviewer must either be of the same gender as the candidate, or a person otherwise known to them (e.g. school teacher).

Interviews with any young person should preferable be conducted in a location that provides clear vision of the interview being conducted and its and participants to other people in the area. An open door or a window is a minimum requirement.

## Meetings

AGA must ensure that the rights and interests are maintained during meetings with young people and that they are conducted in a safe and appropriate manner. Precautions aimed at preventing any misunderstanding or possible allegations of misconduct by an AGA staff member are also important considerations.

Any standard operational meetings (site visits, safety inspection, general feedback, training progress meeting) with a child is to be conducted with a secondary person present. The secondary person can be anyone from a host employer, trainer or another AGA representative.

Any meeting of performance or disciplinary nature must be conducted in line with the Poor performance, counselling and disciplinary procedure section of the Apprentice Code of conduct.

Meetings with any young person should preferable be conducted in a location that provides clear vision of the meeting being conducted and its and participants to other people in the area. An open door or a window is a minimum requirement.

## Providing transport

AGA must take precautions to prevent any misunderstanding or possible allegations of misconduct by an AGA staff member providing transport to children and other young people.

AGA staff are not permitted to provide transport to a child or other young person without another person present, the other person present cannot be a child in their own right.

AGA staff can only provide transport to a child with permission from the preferred parent or guardian.

AGA staff member must seek approval from their manager to prior to providing transport to a child (as well as the parent or guardian) or another young person.

AGA staff are only permitted to provide transport if no other reasonably option is available. AGA staff are not permitted to use their own personal vehicle for transporting a child or other young person.

The requirements for the use of an AGA vehicle by a young person in the Apprentice and Trainee Motor Vehicle Usage Policy must be complied with. The use of an AGA vehicle by a young person must be for purposes



essential to their employment or training. Authorisation for the vehicle used must be obtained prior to use and they must hold a current driver's license.

## Supervision of students

#### **Purpose**

The purpose of these guidelines is to inform AGA Staff of their responsibilities and Duty of Care for the supervision of students attending AGA owned or leased training facilities.

Effective and adequate supervision by trainers and assessors is essential to ensure the safety and wellbeing of all AGA students.

Children and other young people in particular, require closer supervision and instruction than more experienced and mature people. They most likely will lack the safety awareness, skills and knowledge than older students. Therefore, these guidelines the minimum expectations when instructing and supervising students.

#### **Minimum Expectations for Supervising Students**

#### All students must:

- Complete the AGA and site-specific induction program prior to commencing training.
- Be provided with an AGA student handbook and Code of Conduct upon commencement of training.
- Return a signed copy of the Code of Conduct completed during their enrolment process. If a student is under the age of 18, this must also be signed by their parent / guardian.
- Comply with all induction instructions and the requirements in the Code of Conduct.
- Be instructed in hazards relevant to the work being undertaken and precautions to take
- Not operate plant or equipment without receiving appropriate instruction and training and
- · receiving authorization to do so.
- Co-operate and comply with all instructions provided to ensure their safety and wellbeing.

## The trainer must;

- Abide by the AGA Code of Practice for Care and Supervision of Young People.
- Provide such information, instruction and supervision as is necessary to enable students to work in a safe and health manner.
- Comply with all site specific procedures for both AGA and non AGA owned sites.
- Ensure students are not left unsupervised during practical sessions.
- Ensure students do not enter the practical training facilities or classrooms during break times without a trainer present.
- Not use or permit inappropriate or offensive language (e.g. swearing, bullying or harassment towards students).
- In the event of a serious injury follow the AGA Injury Management Plan.
- Notify all stakeholders in the event of an incident.
- Intervene (if safe to do so) when a student's health and safety is at risk.

## **Supervising VDSS Students**

Trainer and assessors have additional responsibilities for VDSS student due to legal obligation, Child Safe Standards, and the requirements stakeholders involved (e.g. secondary schools).



In addition to the requirement in the Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People, the trainer and assessor must;

- Not allow a student to leave the premises without consent from the preferred parent contact or school.
- Not permit school students to smoke or vape on AGA training premises.
- Notify your manager and VDSS Coordinator in the event of a student breaching the AGA Code of Conduct or other such agreement in place. The VDSS coordinator will then communicate with the student's Secondary School.
- Notify your manager and VDSS Coordinator, site manager (for non AGA owned sites) in the event of a serious injury to a student. The VDSS coordinator will then communicate with the student's Secondary School.

In the event that a trainer is absent for the day the following actions will take place.

- The coordinator will conduct the class if available.
- A replacement trainer in the same industry will be contacted regarding availability.
- If suitable trainer not available, then a trainer from a different qualification will be sourced. Practical work will only be carried out if the trainer has the relevant competencies.
- If suitable trainer not available then appropriate AGA staff member will be asked to supervise the class, if available. This class will be theory only.
- If no suitable supervision is available, the school/s will be contacted and students may be returned to school.

## Poor performance, counselling and disciplinary procedures

AGA must ensure that the rights and interests of young people are maintained when implementing counselling and disciplinary procedures and that they are conducted with 'procedural fairness'.

Precautions aimed at preventing any misunderstanding or possible allegations of misconduct by an AGA staff member are also important considerations.

Any formal performance, counselling and disciplinary process with a child must be conducted in the presence of the preferred parent or guardian.

Any performance, counselling and disciplinary process with a child or young person must be completed with two AGA staff members present and follow the practices outlined within this code in relation to privacy, and interviews & meetings.

## Taking of photographs and videos

Photographs and videos of any person that is not authorised and consent isn't provided may breach privacy laws. AGA also want to prevent the taking of inappropriate photographs or videos.

Consent must be provided in writing by any person being photographed or videoed. The consent must also be provided from the preferred parent or guardian contact person if the person is under the age of 18.

The photographing or videoing of all people engaged in employment or training provided by AGA or being supervised by AGA staff or contractors must be authorised prior to taking photographs or videos.

Authorisation must be obtained and provided in writing from either the:

Relevant Senior Manager



Authorisation will only be provided if the taking of photographs or videos is directly related to the employment, training or supervision of the person or persons concerned. This may include authorised promotional purposes and social functions.

The taking of photographs or videos by AGA staff or contractors during normal business hours for personal or private purposes is prohibited.

## Social media

Careless and inappropriate use of social media can have serious implications for the individuals concerned and the reputation and operations of AGA. Unmanaged, social media has the potential for anti-social behaviour such as harassment and bullying and breaches of privacy, confidentiality and disclosure of unauthorised AGA information. Precautions aimed at preventing any misunderstanding or possible allegations of misconduct by an AGA staff member are also important considerations.

AGA staff members are not permitted to be associated with children or other young people on social media. AGA staff members are exempt from this requirement with their family.

In the circumstance where an AGA staff member has a social relationship (e.g. sporting or community group or friends with family) with a child or young person, and there is a desire to communicate via social media, approval must be attained in writing from the preferred parent or guardian in the case of a child. The authorisation must be placed on the AGA staff member's personal file. Approval must be obtained from the AGA staff member's direct manager in the case of any other young person.

It is strongly recommended that all staff working for AGA and Kestrel activate restrictive privacy settings on their personal social media accounts to minimise risk of children and young people accessing personal information.

## Receiving and giving gifts

The receiving of gifts or other benefits by staff or contractors in connection with operations of AGA could result in a conflict of interest or allegations of favouritism or other inappropriate behaviour.

Staff and contractors are not permitted to ask or encourage the giving of gifts or benefits in connection with their duties or the operations of AGA. A monetary gift must not be accepted under any circumstances.

Staff and contractors are permitted to accept gifts of a minimal value in appreciation for their work efforts. All such gifts must be reported to their direct manager within 5 business days.

Where it would be inappropriate to refuse a gift that has more than a minimal value, the gift should be reported within 5 business days to either the:

- Relevant Senior Manager
- Chief Executive Officer

Whether the gift is retained by the person concerned or becomes AGA property is at the discretion of the relevant Senior Manager or Chief Executive Officer.

## Health and safety

AGA has a duty of care for all their employees and any other people at their facilities to provide and maintain a workplace that is safe and without risks to health. This includes course participants and any visitors.

Young people are more likely to have an injury at work or while in training than more experienced and qualified people. Poor risk decisions may even be considered reckless to more mature people.

Risk factors for young people may include:



- · Still developing physically and intellectually
- Lack of experience, knowledge or skills to understand the risks involved in tasks they are doing
- Performing tasks incorrectly because of inadequate instruction or supervision
- Lack of confidence to ask questions and raise issues

Specific attention must be given to the instruction and supervision of young people to ensure they have the information they need to work safely.

AGA staff and contractors are required to:

- Be a good role model and correct any unsafe work habits and behaviour
- Provide health and safety information and precautions for tasks to be performed
- Check for understanding regarding key safety hazards and precautions
- Provide instruction in all equipment, tools and work practices
- Tailor instructions to meet the young worker's cultural, literacy and learning needs so they receive the right message in a manner that they understand
- Have young workers demonstrate competence before starting new tasks

Additional guidance and resources can be located on the Victorian Work Safe website.

https://www.worksafe.vic.gov.au/talking-young-workers-about-health-and-safety

## Illness and medical issues – AGA Employed Apprentices & Trainees

All AGA apprentices and trainees complete a pre-existing medical disclosure form when they are inducted into the organisation. Where the new employee is a child, this document must be co-signed by the preferred parent or guardian.

In the case where the condition is deemed of a nature that the host employer needs to be notified. Permission must be sought by the employee. Where the employee is a child, permission to pass on the information to the host employer must be obtained from the preferred parent or guardian.

## Incident and injury notification

All incidents are to be notified to the HES department.

In the case of a Medical Treatment Injury (MTI) or Lost Time Injury (LTI) to a child the preferred parent or guardian must be notified as soon as practicably possible (once the child is safe and stable). Any other employee who sustains a MTI must have their next of kin contracted as soon as practicably possible.

Any accident or injury involving a VDSS Student must be reported to the Site Coordinator and relevant VDSS coordinator. The VDSS coordinator is responsible for sharing this information with the relevant Secondary School.

Any incident of injury involving and Apprentice or Trainee employed by AGA must be reported to the relevant Field Officer.

## Workplace harassment and bullying

Workplace harassment and bullying is repeated behaviour by a person that:

- Is directed at an individual person or group of people, and
- Is offensive, intimidating, humiliating or threatening, and

15



- · Is unwelcome and unsolicited
- A reasonable person would consider the behaviour to be offensive, intimidating or threatening

Workplace harassment and bullying is illegal and can be dealt with under health and safety legislation. AGA and all its staff and contractors have an obligation under the law to prevent and not engage in harassment or bullying behaviour.

Providing feedback, advice or counselling on work performance or behaviour should not be confused with harassment and bullying. Any action taken to assist in improving work performance or changing behaviour should always be constructive.

AGA staff and contractors are required to interact and communicate with other people in a manner which:

- · Respect another person's opinions and beliefs
- Allows reasonable opportunity to express views and comments
- Involves fair, informed and transparent decision making
- · Is not intimidating, humiliating, sarcastic or teasing
- Doesn't involve abusive, offensive or hostile language
- Doesn't involve inappropriate sexual matters or content
- · Doesn't contain threats or aggressive behaviour

## Discrimination

Anti-discrimination legislation prohibits unlawful discrimination in employment and training. This means that AGA staff and contractors must not discriminate in their relations or decisions with people involved in employment, training or supervision they provide on such grounds as race, sex, disability, religion, pregnancy and political conviction and includes a person's age.

AGA trainers and supervisors are required to discourage any form of discrimination by all people that they are responsible for. They are required to promote an environment that is accepting and tolerant of diversity, and is free from intimidation, threat, humiliation and harassment.

Discrimination against any person must be reported to either the:

- Relevant Senior Manager
- Chief Executive Officer

## Reporting suspected child abuse

Procedures for the reporting of suspected child abuse are a requirement of the Child Safe Standards. In the Standards, abuse constitutes any act committed against a child involving:

- Physical violence
- Sexual offences
- · Serious emotional or psychological abuse, and
- Serious neglect

Further explanation of these types of abuse is provided in the Child Safe Statement of Commitment in Appendix 2



AGA encourages the reporting of suspected child abuse and will support people who report or witness abuse or have a child safety concern. Allegations of child abuse and safety concerns are taken seriously and will be dealt with promptly and in an appropriate manner.

Suspected child abuse must be reported to:

- Relevant Senior Manager
- Chief Executive Officer.

AGA is required to comply with legal requirements to report child abuse outlined in the Reportable Conduct Scheme and staff will be supported through this process. All AGA Trainers and Assessors are required to complete annual Mandatory Reporting training.

# 7. Non-compliance with the Code of Practice

The Code of Practice must be complied with by all AGA staff (permanent, casual and temporary) and people contracted to provide services on behalf of AGA.

The requirements of the Code of Practice apply at all times. This includes times when a staff member or contractor is not at work or not performing work duties. It includes times when on leave.

Specific instances of either suspected or actual non-compliance with the code must be reported to the:

- Relevant Senior Manager
- Chief Executive Officer.

If AGA considers that the code has not been complied with, disciplinary action may be taken. Any disciplinary action will be in accordance with the AGA disciplinary procedures.

In deciding whether non-compliance has occurred, due consideration will be given to the circumstances of the non-compliance and the views of the person concerned.

Disciplinary action may include a reprimand, termination of employment or any other appropriate sanction.

# 8. Management review of the Code of Practice

Senior management will review the continuing suitability, adequacy and effectiveness of the arrangements for the care and supervision of young people. The review is to be conducted at intervals that is determined appropriate. The review must be documented and reported to the CEO.

The review process must ensure that the necessary information is collected and that interested parties are consulted to allow management to carry out the evaluation.

The review is to determine whether the organisation's care and supervision arrangements:

- · Are being properly implemented and maintained, and
- Are effective in meeting the objectives of the Care and Supervision of Young People Policy

17



The review will include, and change where appropriate, to the policy, Code of Practice, Child Safe Statement of Commitment, management systems and other elements in response to changing circumstances and a commitment to continual improvement.



# Appendix 1 – Care and Supervision of Young People Policy

## Care and Supervision of Young People Policy

## **Purpose**

The provision of appropriate care and supervision of children and other young people that AGA have responsibility for as part of their operations.

It is acknowledged that AGA has a responsibility for the care and supervision of all people that they employ, train or supervise. It is recognised, however, that children and other young people have specific needs in addition to this general duty of care. AGA is committed to the protection of children and implementation of the Victorian Child Safe Standards.

To assist in achieving the purpose of this policy a child is defined as a person under the age of 18 and a young person is defined as being over the age of 18 and under 21.

## **Policy Objectives**

AGA is committed to continuous improvement in the employment, training and supervision practices for children and other young people.

It is the policy of AGA that:

- A Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People is implemented and maintained for providing guidance to management and staff on appropriate behaviour with children and other young people
- The Code of Practice contains a Child Safe Statement providing a commitment to child safety and the prevention of child abuse
- This policy and the Code of Practice and other pertinent information is communicated to relevant staff, contracted trainers and other interested parties
- This policy and the Child Safe Statement are maintained on the organisation's web site
- Competencies are developed and maintained for employees with roles and responsibilities for the effective implementation of the Code of Practice
- Relevant documents, records and data are created and maintained for the effective implementation and compliance with the Code of Practice
- Senior management implement a periodic review of the management systems for providing care and supervision to children and other young people so that they remain effective and appropriate

## Responsibility: CEO

## **Code of Practice and Child Safe Statement**

A Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People and a Child Safe Statement are to be developed, maintained and reviewed periodically to ensure they remains appropriate and effective. The review is to be conducted in consultation with interested parties.

**Responsibility: Chief Executive Officer** 



#### **Instruction in Code of Practice and Statement**

Staff and other relevant parties with responsibility for the care and supervision of children and young people are to be provided information and instruction in the requirements of the Code of Practice and Statement.

They are to be advised of any amendments or additional requirements and any other pertinent information.

## **Responsibility: Chief Executive Officer**

## **Implementing Code of Practice and Statement**

Staff and other relevant parties with responsibility for the care and supervision of children and other young people are required to implement the requirements of the Code of Practice and Statement.

The Code is applicable to any child or young person being employed, trained or being supervised by AGA staff or person being contracted to provide these services on behalf of AGA.

## Responsibility: All AGA staff and contractors

#### **Relevant Documents, Records and Data**

Documents, records and data that are required for the effective implementation of the policy shall be identified, developed or created. Records and data will be maintained to demonstrate compliance with the policy requirements and for a process of review and continual improvement.

## **Responsibility: Chief Executive Officer**

## **Management Review**

Senior management will review the continuing suitability, adequacy and effectiveness of the arrangements for the care and supervision of children and other young people.

The review will include, and change where appropriate, the policy, Code of Practice, Child safe Statement, management systems and other elements in response to changing circumstances and a commitment to continual improvement.

## **Responsibility: Chief Executive Officer**

## **Reference Documents**

Child Safe Statement

Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People Victorian Child Safe Standards

Policy Approved by: CEO

Distributed to: All sites via AGA Gemba



# Appendix 2 - Child Safe Statement of Commitment

## Child Safe Statement of Commitment

AGA is committed to the safety of children for which we have responsibility for as part of our operations. Children have the same right to a safe training and work environment as other people in our workplaces.

While our commitment to the care and supervision of young people includes children, we also acknowledge our obligations under the Victorian Child Safe Standards.

## **Purpose**

Its purpose is to guide the design and implementation of AGA policies, procedures and practices with the aim of protecting children from abuse.

This statement provides an overview of the key principles of AGA's approach to child safety and their protection from abuse.

#### AGA and its Board:

- Have a zero tolerance for child abuse
- Is committed to acting in the best interests of children
- Promotes cultural safety for children from indigenous and culturally and/or linguistically
- · diverse backgrounds
- Have systems in place to protect children from abuse
- Works towards informing and empowering children
- Is committed to providing a safe environment for children
- Will take any allegations of abuse seriously and respond to them promptly in line with organisational procedures

## Scope

This statement is applicable to all AGA staff members and other relevant parties engaged in child-connected work

Staff and relevant parties are individuals employed or contracted as full-time, part-time or on a casual basis by AGA.

## **Child Abuse**

For the purpose of this statement, abuse constitutes any act committed against a child involving the categories below:

**Physical violence** - occurs when a child suffers or is likely to suffer significant harm from a non-accidental injury or injuries inflicted by another person.

**Sexual offences** - occur when a person involves the child in sexual activity, or deliberately puts the child in the presence of sexual behaviours that are exploitative or inappropriate to their age and development.

**Serious emotional or psychological abuse** - occurs when harm is inflicted on a child through repeated rejection, isolation, derogation, teasing or by threats of violence.



**Serious neglect** - is the continued failure to provide a child with the basic necessities of life, such as food, clothing, shelter, hygiene, medical attention or adequate supervision, to the extent that the child's health, safety and/or development is, or is likely to be, jeopardised. Serious neglect can also occur if adequate measures are not taken to ensure the safety of a child exposed to dangerous or life-threatening situations.

#### Roles and Responsibility

**The Board** has a responsibility to monitor the adherence and appropriateness of the organisation's policies and procedures for protecting children from abuse.

**The CEO** is responsible for promoting an organisational culture and implementing policies and procedures that aim to protect children from abuse.

**Senior Managers** have a responsibility to raise awareness of the importance of child safety at AGA and in the community that we operate. They have a defined role and responsibility for providing information and advice in relation to child safety and managing inquiries, concerns and complaints in relation to child safety or abuse.

**Senior Managers** are responsible for providing information and instruction in the requirements of the Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People and this Statement to staff and other relevant parties with responsibility for the care and supervision of children and other young people.

**AGA** staff and other relevant parties engaged in child-connected work must agree to abide by our Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People. The Code of Practice provides guidance on how to behave with children and the standards of conduct.

## **Communicating this Statement**

The Child Safe Statement is available to interested parties on the AGA web site.

The Statement is communicated to AGA staff and other relevant parties engaged in child-connected work via its inclusion in Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People.

The Statement is included in induction material for:

- · Host Employers of apprentices and trainees
- Commencing apprentices and trainees
- Course participants in AGA training centre programs
- Commencing AGA staff including full-time, part-time and casual staff

## **Privacy**

AGA manage personal information in accordance with the Australian Privacy Principles. We are committed to maintaining the right to privacy and AGA's responsibility for protecting personal information. AGA takes reasonable steps in order to comply with these obligations.

#### **Risk Management**

A systematic approach to managing risk is applied to AGA's operations based on the principles and guidelines contained in AS/NZ ISO 310:2009. A risk management process is utilised for the identification, assessment and control of risks for any situation where an undesirable or unexpected outcome may have a significant impact.

This risk management approach is applied to the protection of children, in addition to the general duty of care under health and safety legislation for all people in our workplaces.

#### Contact for Further information and Raising a Complaint or Concern

Either of the following details can be used to raise a complaint or to obtain further information regarding the Victorian Child Safe Standards or child safety and abuse:

Complaints and Appeals Policy and Procedure



- Relevant Senior Manager
- Chief Executive Officer

Staff and all people using our services are informed on reporting procedures if they observe abuse or are subject to abuse, and if they observe a dangerous situation or inappropriate behaviour.

AGA take allegations of child abuse and safety concerns seriously. Procedures are in place to thoroughly investigate matters raised in a prompt manner. Arrangements are in place to access independent investigation services if required.

Inquiry and complaint details will be required to be in writing so that they can be dealt with fully. AGA will respond within 2 business days after receiving written notice and deal with the matter in a confidential manner.

AGA will ensure that all required reporting occurs in adherence with the Reportable Conduct Scheme.

#### **Review and Continuous Improvement**

Senior management will review the continuing suitability, adequacy and effectiveness of the arrangements for the care and supervision of young people. The review is to be conducted at intervals that are determined appropriate. The review must be documented and reported to the CEO.

The review process must ensure that the necessary information is collected and that interested parties are consulted to allow management to carry out the evaluation.

The review is to determine whether the organisation's care and supervision arrangements:

- · Are being properly implemented and maintained, and
- Are effective in meeting the objectives of the Care and Supervision of Young People Policy

The review will include, and change where appropriate, the:

- AGA Care and Supervision of Young People Policy,
- Code of Practice for the Care and Supervision of Young People,
- Child Safe Statement of Commitment and Management systems and other elements in response to changing circumstances and a commitment to continual improvement.

#### Reference Documents

Grievance, complaints & appeals Policy & Procedure

**Customer Service Charter** 

Apprentice/Trainee Induction Guide

Student Handbook

AGA Web-site

AGA Continuous Improvement Policy & Procedure

Care and supervision of young people policy

Child Safe Statement of Commitment

Apprentice / Trainee Handbook

Approved by: CEO

Distributed to: All sites via Gemba